MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 1993

22ND BOARD OF REPRESENTATIVES

STAMFORD, CONNECTICUT

A regular monthly meeting of the 22nd Board of Representatives of the City of Stamford was held on Wednesday, November 3, 1993, in the Legislative Chamber of the Board of Representatives, Government Center, 888 Washington Boulevard, Stamford, Connecticut. This meeting was the last scheduled meeting of the 22nd Board of Representatives.

The meeting was called to order at 8:05 p.m. by President Richard L. Lyons after both parties met in Caucus.

INVOCATION was given by the Rev. Dennis R. Winkleblack, Pastor, First United Methodist Church of Stamford, Long Ridge Road & Cross Road, Stamford, CT 06905

"Let us pray. Oh mighty God, whose glory is in all the world and who has given us this good land and fair city for our delight and entrusted to us its stewardship, we command the City of Stamford to your care now in this season of transition of victories and defeats, of happy surprises and disappointing upsets, thanking You for those who have served so faithfully in years past and especially for those whose service will conclude with this 22nd Board of Representatives. As always give, we pray, those who labor this night in the affairs before them a love for truth, a vision that transcends partisanship, a courage to call forth the highest loyalties of all whom they represent and the wisdom and strength to preserve in the face of difficulties and great odds when their cause is just. Amen."

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG was led by President Richard L. Lyons.

ROLL CALL was taken by Clerk of the Board Annie M. Summerville.

There were 35 members present and five absent. Absent were Francisco Gaztambide, W. Dennis White (excused), Donald Sherer, Ellen Bromley, and Patrick Mullins.

The Chair declared a quorum.

MACHINE TEST VOTE was taken by President Richard L. Lyons. The machine was in good working order.

MOMENTS OF SILENCE: - None.

REP. BOCCUZZI speaking to President Lyons said that he, as the Majority Leader and a member of the Democratic Party and on behalf of the Board, thanked President Lyons for his two years of leadership and for his fairness. Rep. Boccuzzi said the start of the Board was rocky, but with the leadership and thinking of President Lyons, the Board has been a very good one. Rep. Boccuzzi said that there were big shoes to be filled and he hoped and prayed that President Lyons would remember the Board and come to visit to make sure everything was "on the ball." Rep. Boccuzzi again thanked President Lyons for the two good years and for his presidency which will be remembered by all.

<u>REP. RUBINO</u> said that he concurred with Rep. Boccuzzi. He said that he has been on the Board for eight years and has led the Republican side for three terms. He said that there has not been a term as productive as this one. He credited the leadership of President Lyons for the productive term.

REP. MARTIN Moved to take up an item not on the Agenda. Seconded and Approved.

RESOLUTIONS

 SENSE-OF-THE-BOARD RESOLUTION HONORING RICHARD L. LYONS, PRESIDENT OF THE 22ND BOARD OF REPRESENTATIVES FOR HIS MANY YEARS OF SERVICE TO THE CITY OF STAMFORD. Submitted by the 22nd Board of Representatives 11/3/93.

<u>REP. MARTIN</u> read the following Sense-of-the-Board Resolution Honoring Richard L. Lyons, President of the 22nd Board of Representatives for his many years of service to the City of Stamford.

"WHEREAS, Richard L. Lyons was elected to represent the 1st District of the City of Stamford in 1983; and

"WHEREAS, Richard L. Lyons has served his district, this Board and the City of Stamford as a representative for the last ten years; and

"WHEREAS, Richard L. Lyons has served on numerous Board of Representatives Committees including the Chairman of Fiscal and the Chairman of Planning and Zoning selflessly, dedicating countless hours of his time to work of this Board and the City; and

"WHEREAS, Richard L. Lyons has led this Board as President during the last two years with honor, honesty and distinction; and

"WHEREAS, the Board of Representatives will deeply miss Richard L. Lyons and the leadership and service he has given to the City.

"NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the 22nd Board of Representatives hereby salutes and honors Richard L. Lyons for his ten years of service, his leadership and his many contributions to the Board of Representatives, to the 1st District and to the City of Stamford."

A copy of the resolution is attached to these Minutes.

The resolution was Moved, Seconded and APPROVED unanimously.

CLERK SUMMERVILLE said that her association with President Lyons has been wonderful. She said that she did not think that there was ever one disagreement. She said she had an excellent releationship with President Lyons and felt very comfortable with him. Rep. Summerville said that she will miss him and speaking on behalf of the office staff, they will also miss him. Rep. Summerville said that she is confident that President Lyons will be back on the Board as this is only a little vacation for him. She wished Dick and his family well.

PRESIDENT LYONS said that he spoke a few words in Caucus about the cooperation of the 22nd Board. He said the 22nd Board has conducted itself in a manner befitting any legislative body. He said that the Board has been deliberate, conscientious, understanding and has worked for the betterment of the City of Stamford. He said that it was not easy to do that when there is such a diverse electorate as in Stamford. President Lyons said that he has seen the people in the 20th district voting for work programs and people in the 6th voting for bridges in North Stamford; this shows the type of cooperation there was on the Board. He said that he hoped and prayed that this will not be lost and on the next Board, members will conduct themselves as they have done in the past.

PRESIDENT LYONS said that leadership bouquets are being given to him but you cannot lead unless people are willing to go that step with you. He said that each and every member has been willing and each member has been willing to put his/her agenda on the back burner for the betterment of what the overall could do for the City of Stamford.

President Lyons said that he salutes the members of the Board and they are a credit to the city. He thanked the Board members.

STEERING COMMITTEE: Chairman Richard L. Lyons.

REPORT. Waived.

REP. BOCCUZZI Moved to waive the reading of the Steering Committee report. Seconded. APPROVED by voice vote with no dissenting votes.

The Steering Committee met on Wednesday, October 13, 1993, in the Democratic Caucus Room of the Government Center, 888 Washington Boulevard. The meeting was called to order by Chairman Richard L. Lyons at 7:31 p.m. He declared a quorum.

Present at the meeting:

Richard L. Lyons, Chairman Scott Morris Ralph Loglisci Joseph Gergle, Jr.

James Rubino Maria Nakian Mary Lou Rinaldi
Robert DeLuca Thomas Pia Elaine Mitchell Annie Summerville Joan Rinaldi Carmen Domonkos John R. Zelinsky, Jr. Audrey Maihock Marion Brown, CT Post John J. Hogan, Jr.

John J. Boccuzzi David Martin Bobby Owens

Michael Larobina Philip Stork John Roman, WSTC Anne Kachaluba

APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda. Ordered off the Addenda was one name which is to be resubmitted to the next

FISCAL COMMITTEE - Ordered on the Agenda were 16 of the 22 items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda; the balance of items were taken off or may be resubmitted to the next Board.

LEGISLATIVE & RULES COMMITTEE - Ordered on the Agenda were three of the five items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda; the balance of items were taken off and may be resubmitted to the next Board.

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE - Ordered on the Agenda were the two items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

STEERING COMMITTEE REPORT: (continued)

<u>PLANNING & ZONING COMMITTEE</u> - Ordered on the Agenda were two of the three items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda; one item was taken off and may be resubmitted to the next Board.

<u>PUBLIC WORKS & SEWER COMMITTEE</u> - Ordered on the Agenda was the one item appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

HEALTH & PROTECTION COMMITTEE - Ordered off the Agenda were the two items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda. Reps. Summerville and Zelinsky abstained on the vote on the proposed ordinance concerning lead abatement.

<u>PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE</u> - Ordered off the Agenda was the one item appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

EDUCATION, WELFARE & GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

<u>URBAN RENEWAL COMMITTEE</u> - Ordered on the Agenda were the two items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda. Ordered on the Agenda was the one item appearing on the Addenda.

HOUSE COMMITTEE - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

<u>COLISEUM AUTHORITY LIAISON COMMITTEE</u> - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

LABOR RELATIONS COMMITTEE - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE - Ordered on the Agenda was the one item appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

ETHICS REVIEW COMMITTEE - Ordered off the Agenda was the one item appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

AUDIT REVIEW COMMITTEE - No items appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

<u>PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE</u> - Ordered on the Agenda was the one item appearing on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

RESOLUTIONS - No items appeared on the Tentative Steering Agenda.

Note: All the items on the Pending Agenda were removed.

<u>ADJOURNMENT</u> - There being no further business to come before the Steering Committee, upon a motion made, Seconded and Approved, the meeting was adjourned at 7:47 p.m.

Richard L. Lyons, Chairman Steering Committee

APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE - Ellen Bromley & Annie Summerville, Co-Chairwoman

No report.

At this point in the meeting, Reps. Ellen Bromley and Donald Sherer joined the meeting; 37 members present and three absent.

<u>REP. BROMLEY</u> said that she and Co-Chair Annie Summerville would have liked to been busier and loved Chairing Appointments. She thanked all the members who served on the Committee.

FISCAL COMMITTEE - Mary Lou Rinaldi & Carmen Domonkos, Co-Chairwomen

REP. M. RINALDI said that the Committee met on Wednesday, October 27, 1993 at 7:00 p.m. Present were Committee members Mary Lou Rinaldi, Carmen Domonkos, Maria Nakian, Ralph Loglisci, James Rubino, John F. Leydon, Jr., John Hogan, Nicholas Pavia, Gloria DePina and Elaine Mitchell.

Rep. M. Rinaldi placed items 5, 6, 7, 11, 12, 13 and 14 on Consent.

1. \$ 75,000.00 - FERGUSON LIBRARY - AMENDMENT TO CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 1993/94 FOR PROJECT CODE 710.39 MAIN LIBRARY MAINTENANCE - additional appropriation for exterior painting, roof repair, wood, brick and marble repair, carpeting and furniture replacement. To be finance by bonds. Adoption of resolution regarding funding to be financed by bonding, to be financed temporarily and/or permanently by borrowings, as to which the City expresses its official intent, all as more particularly stated on Exhibit A. Request by Mayor Stanley J. Esposito, 8/9/93. Planning Board approved 9/14/93. Contingent upon Board of Finance approval. Held in Steering 8/11 and 9/14/93.

Above also referred to EDUCATION, WELFARE AND GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE.

NO ACTION TAKEN: WILL BE RESUBMITTED.

1. \$80,000.00 - FERGUSON LIBRARY - AMENDMENT TO CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 1993/94 FOR PROJECT CODE 710.38 COMPUTER SYSTEM REPLACEMENT - additional appropriation for second of three installments to purchase computer system. This system features a DEC VAX 4300 computer with a 135 terminal capacity. To be financed by bonds. Adoption of resolution regarding funding to be financed by bonding, to be financed temporarily and/or permanently by borrowings, as to which the City expresses its official intent, all as more particularly stated on Exhibit A. Planning Board approved 8/24/93. Contingent upon Board of Finance approval. Held in Steering 8/11 and 9/14/93.

Above also referred to EDUCATION, WELFARE AND GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE.

NO ACTION TAKEN: WILL BE RESUBMITTED.

FISCAL COMMITTEE: (continued)

3. REPORT INTO THE IMPACT AND EFFECT OF RE-EVALUATION ON THE TAXPAYERS AND FISCAL CONDITION OF THE CITY OF STAMFORD. Submitted by Reps. John Hogan, D-12, Audrey Maihock, R-19, David Martin, D-19 and Maria Nakian, D-20, 12/13/91. Reports made and Held in Committee from 1/6 to 12/1/92. Reports made and Held in Committee from 1/4 to 10/4/93. Held in Steering 7/14/93.

NO ACTION TAKEN.

4. \$ 27,000.00 - LAW DEPARTMENT - CODE 230.5150 PROFESSIONAL CONSULTANTS - additional appropriation to pay outstanding bills from law firm engaged to assist Director of Labor Relations in labor negotiations and grievances. Request by Mayor Stanley J. Esposito, 9/14/93. Board of Finance approved 9/15/93. \$79,200 approved 10/4/93; \$27,000 Held in Committee 10/4/93.

Above also referred to EDUCATION, WELFARE AND GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE.

NO ACTION TAKEN.

5. \$ 30,000.00 - POLICE DEPARTMENT - CODE 410.1230 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT - additional appropriation for anticipated expenditures for tuition reimbursement as per contract. Request by Mayor Stanley J. Esposito, 9/21/93. Board of Finance approved \$30,000 10/21/93.

Above also referred to HEALTH AND PROTECTION COMMITTEE.

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

6. \$ 750.00 - HEALTH DEPARTMENT - CODE 550.2940 CONFERENCES & TRAINING - additional appropriation to reinstate forensic laboratory services so staff is certified and trained in identification of all drugs. Request by Mayor Stanley J. Esposito, 9/27/93. Board of Finance approved 10/21/93.

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

7. \$ 6.971.00 - HEALTH DEPARTMENT - CODE 550.1110 SALARIES - additional appropriation to fund arbitration award in favor of one employee. Request by Mayor Stanley J. Esposito, 9/27/93. Board of Finance approved 10/21/93.

Above also referred to HEALTH AND PROTECTION COMMITTEE.

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

FISCAL COMMITTEE: (continued)

8. <u>\$ 6.925.00</u> - HEALTH DEPARTMENT - CODE 550.1230 COLLEGE TUITION - additional appropriation for reimbursement of college tuitions for programs of study. Request by Mayor Stanley J. Esposito, 9/27/93. Board of Finance approved 10/21/93.

Above also referred to HEALTH AND PROTECTION COMMITTEE.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

9. \$ 7.200.00 - HEALTH DEPARTMENT - PUBLIC SCHOOL NURSING - CODE 560.1230 COLLEGE TUITION - additional appropriation for individuals who have requested college tuition reimbursements. Request by Mayor Stanley J. Esposito, 9/27/93. Board of Finance approved 10/21/93.

Above also referred to HEALTH AND PROTECTION COMMITTEE.

HELD IN COMMITTEE

10. \$ 7,200.00 - HEALTH DEPARTMENT - AIDS DEPARTMENT - CODE 577.1230 COLLEGE TUITION - additional appropriation for individuals requesting college tuition reimbursements. Request by Mayor Stanley J. Esposito, 9/27/93. Contingent upon Board of Finance approval. Withdrawn from Agenda.

Above also referred to HEALTH AND PROTECTION COMMITTEE.

WITHDRAWN FROM AGENDA

11. <u>\$ 12.548.00</u> - HEALTH DEPARTMENT - WIC PROGRAM - CODE 573.VARIOUS ACCOUNTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 1993/94 - additional appropriation to cover an increase in the grant.

	and an one brane.		
573.1110	salaries	\$ 1,519	
573.1310	FICA (social security)	90	
573.1330	medical/life	6,875	
573.1390	general insurance/city	174	
573.2930	office supplies & expenses	2,400	
573.2940	conference & training	90	
573.3738	health certification	1,400	
		\$ 12,548	

Request by Mayor Stanley J. Esposito, 9/27/93. Board of Finance approved 10/21/93.

Above also referred to HEALTH AND PROTECTION COMMITTEE.

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

FISCAL COMMITTEE: (continued)

12. \$ 25.000.00 - HEALTH DEPARTMENT - CODE 550.1110 SALARIES - additional appropriation to fund a full-time forensic laboratory technician. Request by Mayor Stanley J. Esposito, 9/27/93. Board of Finance approved 10/21/93.

Above also referred to HEALTH AND PROTECTION COMMITTEE.

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

13. \$\frac{\\$10.000.00}{\} - FIRE DEPARTMENT - CODE 450.1230 COLLEGE TUITION - additional appropriation for tuition reimbursements per Collective Bargaining Agreement. Request by Mayor Stanley J. Esposito, 9/27/93. Board of Finance approved \$10,000, 10/21/93.

Above also referred to HEALTH AND PROTECTION COMMITTEE.

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

14. PROPOSED RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF CONNECTICUT FOR RAIL PARKING IMPROVEMENTS AT THE SPRINGDALE RAIL STATION. Submitted by Mayor Stanley J. Esposito, 10/8/93.

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

15. ISSUE OF REALLOCATION OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION 1993/94 BUDGET CUTS.
Request by Rep. Carmen Domonkos, D-18, 9/14/93. Held in Committee 10/4/93.

REPORT ATTACHED TO THESE MINUTES

16. EXPANSION OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION PRE-SCHOOL PROGRAM. Request by Rep. Carmen Domonkos, D-18, 9/14/93. Held in Committee 10/4/93.

REPORT ATTACHED TO THESE MINUTES

REP. M. RINALDI Moved the Consent Agenda. Seconded.

<u>PRESIDENT LYONS</u> called for a vote to approve the Consent Agenda. APPROVED by voice vote with no dissenting votes.

REP. M. RINALDI thanked Co-Chair Carmen Domonkos for taking over last month on such short notice and appreciated her efforts. Also, she said that she, and on behalf of Co-Chair Domonkos, thanked the Fiscal Committee for their hard work and effort for the past two years.

LEGISLATIVE & RULES COMMITTEE - Maria Nakian, Chairwoman

REP. NAKIAN said the Committee met on Monday, October 25, 1993 at 7:00 p.m. Present were Committee members Maria Nakian, Scott Morris, Carmen Domonkos, David Martin, Elaine Mitchell, John Zelinsky, Jr., Audrey Maihock, Joan Rinaldi and Donald Sherer.

Rep. Nakian said that public hearings were held on all three items. There was no public representation on items one and two; on item three, there were two canine officers, Marge Yunger and Terry Wagner, and approximately 40 people.

Rep. Nakian placed item two on the Consent Agenda.

(L&R22.58) FOR FINAL ADOPTION - PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 111-1
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES CONCERNING DOG REGULATIONS. Requested by Rep.
John R. Zelinsky, Jr., D-11, 5/7/93. Held in Committee 6/7, 7/6, 8/2 and
9/7/93. Approved for publication 10/4/93.

<u>REP. NAKIAN</u> said that the Committee wanted to amend Section 111-1; however, by amending, the item could not be approved by this Board. The item will be resubmitted to the next Board.

 (L&R22.66) FOR FINAL ADOPTION - PROPOSED ORDINANCE CONCERNING TAX ABATEMENT FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 38 DAGMAR ROAD OWNED BY EVANGELICAL CONGREGATIONAL CHURCH. Requested by Joseph J. Capalbo, II, Esq., 1100 Summer Street, Stamford, CT 06905, 8/30/93. Approved for publication 10/4/93.

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA

 (L&R22.67) FOR FINAL ADOPTION - PROPOSED ORDINANCE CREATING AND DESIGNATING THE POSITION OF ASSISTANT TO THE FINANCE COMMISSIONER FOR INFORMATION SYSTEMS AS UNCLASSIFIED. Submitted by Patrick O'Connor, Commissioner of Finance, 9/30/93. Approved for publication 10/4/93.

REP. NAKIAN said that the Committee voted eight in favor, one opposed with no abstentions. Moved. Seconded.

Rep. Nakian said that the title and in several places in the text reads, "Assistant to the Finance Commissioner," the Committee amended the ordinance to read, "Assistant to the Finance Commissioner for Information Systems." She said the change was minor to make the ordinance explicit.

REP. MAIHOCK said that she was the dissenting vote in Committee. She said that she questioned the necessity of increasing the bureaucracy but did not question the need for help in the department; that is why she did not vote for the proposed ordinance.

<u>PRESIDENT LYONS</u> called for a vote to approve the proposed ordinance Creating and Designating the Position of Assistant to the Finance Commissioner for Information Systems as Unclassified. APPROVED by voice vote, 37 yes votes, no dissenting votes.

LEGISLATIVE & RULES COMMITTEE: (continued)

REP. NAKIAN Moved for approval of the Consent Agenda. Seconded.

PRESIDENT LYONS called for a vote to approve the Consent Agenda. APPROVED by voice vote with Reps. Perillo and DeLuca abstaining on item two.

REP. NAKIAN thanked the Legislative and Rules Committee. She said the Committee was wonderful to work with and they were never without a quorum. She appreciated all the help received on all the many issues that came before the Committee.

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE - John J. Hogan, Jr., Chairman

REP. HOGAN said that the Committee met this evening.

(Individual motions were made on each position)

1. APPROVAL OF SALARY RECOMMENDATIONS PER SECTION 5-10-3(a) OF THE CHARTER FOR THE FOLLOWING:

Mayor	\$80,000
Corporation Counsel	77,500
Commissioner of Finance	77,500
Commissioner of Public Works	77,500
City & Town Clerk	58,125
Registrars of Voters	46,500

Submitted by Sim Bernstein, Personnel Director, 7/22/93. Personnel Commission approved 7/21/93. Board of Finance approved 8/12/93. Returned to Committee 9/7/93. Held in Committee 10/4/93.

REP. HOGAN Moved to approve the Mayor's salary from the present \$75,000 to \$80,000. Seconded.

<u>REP. DeLUCA</u> said that he was happy to see that each position will be voted on separately instead of a complete package. He hoped that the same would happen on the package plan for classified and unclassified administrators.

Rep. DeLuca Moved to reduce the Mayor's salary and the Cabinet by \$5,000. Seconded.

Rep. DeLuca said that the economy is down, people are being terminated and out of work and salaries are down and held. He said that a letter has been received from the Finance Commissioner who seems to be a little disturbed that people in the city are making more money than he is and that he receives no pension. Rep. DeLuca stated that the Commissioner knew that when he took the job.

Rep. DeLuca said that the Mayor can establish a precedent for the municipal employees by telling them that there can be a wage freeze or that he can only accept a two or three percent increase. Rep. DeLuca said that there is a potential of a 30% tax increase next year and that is a concern for the public. He urged his colleagues to vote for the \$5,000 cut.

REP. ZELINSKY said that he concurred with Rep. DeLuca. He said that he could not justify and vote for a raise when in the past two years, so many city employees have been laid off and some are still without jobs. Rep. Zelinsky said that the Mayor receives a salary, a car which he has access to 24 hours a day, 365 days a year, no maintenance and free gasoline; also, the Mayor has an expense allowance and is an invited guest to numerous functions, performances, etc. throughout the year that he does not have to pay for.

Rep. Zelinsky said that he heard on the local radio station that the Mayor said that if the increase was approved, he would not accept it. Rep. Zelinsky said that if the Mayor does not accept the increase, why should the Board approve it. He hoped that the increase will not be approved.

REP. J. RINALDI said that the increase proposed is \$5,000, so if the proposed increase is reduced, there would not be any increase at all.

REP. BELCHER said that we should keep in mind that we are talking about the leadership of the city government. He said that in the Board of Education you will see 15 people that make more money than the Mayor and cabinet. Rep. Belcher said that we should not cut back the salaries at this point.

REP. STORK said that the argument presented this evening was that city employees lost their jobs, and they have; people are unemployed and they are; however, a \$5,000 raise after a four-year period is well justified. Rep. Stork said that he has received unsolicited comments from people aware of the proposal and they felt the increase was fair. Rep. Stork said that he will vote against the amendment to reduce.

REP. MARTIN said that if the Mayor wants to reject the raise or trim the \$5,000, he can. Rep. Martin said that for the chief executive of the city, \$80,000 is not the right number. He said there are no real benefits for this position other than what was pointed out, the use of a car for city business. Rep. Martin said that \$80,000 is a very low number given the scope of responsibilities and authority that the Mayor has.

REP. SHERER said that he has heard comments such as "why can't we get better candidates, why don't you run," and one of the answers is that with the kind of pay the mayor is paid, you will not get the best candidates. Rep. Sherer said that he agreed with Rep. Martin. Rep. Sherer said that to pay the Mayor \$80,000 is not outrages and urged his colleagues to support the \$80,000.

PRESIDENT LYONS proceeded to a vote on the amendment to cut \$5,000 from the proposed \$80,000 salary for the Mayor. DEFEATED by a vote of 28 no, 8 yes votes with one abstention.

PRESIDENT LYONS called for a vote to approve the salary of the Mayor at \$80,000. APPROVED by voice vote with 28 yes votes, eight no votes, Reps. Laurie, Gergle, Zelinsky, Curtis, Weinstein, Perillo, DeLuca and Maihock; and one abstention, Rep. Summerville.

12.

REP. HOGAN Moved for the approval of the proposed \$77,500 for the position of Corporation Counsel. Seconded.

REP. MARTIN said that he was going to abstain on this item. He said that he has no objections to Corporation Counsel earning \$77,500 as he thought that all the positions being considered are deserving of more if they are working fulltime. Rep. Martin said that he was concerned that the Personnel Commission has not adequately dealt with the issue of a part-time or full-time corporation counsel. He said that the time has come for the city to have a full-time corporation counsel and that is what the position should be. Rep. Martin said that he understands the difficulties of that type of requirement and particularly at the salaries offered, but he said that it was unfair to have one person working part-time even if the part-time is an extraordinary amount of hours because all those people are working 60 hours a week and up. Rep. Martin did not believe it fair for one person to be in his own business while also serving the city and earning the same salary as the other positions. Rep. Martin said that he did not have anything against the present corporation counsel; the issue was the position and he said that the Personnel Commission has not addressed the issue, therefore, he would abstain.

<u>PRESIDENT LYONS</u> called for a vote to approve \$77,500 for the salary of Corporation Counsel. APPROVED by voice vote with 25 yes, three no votes, Reps. Perillo, DeLuca and Maihock, and nine abstentions, Reps. Martin, Rubino, Summerville, LaDestro, Sherer, Bromley, Leydon, Nakian and Laurie.

REP. HOGAN said that the Committee voted for the salary increase for the Commissioner of Finance from the present \$70,000 to \$77,500. Moved. Seconded.

<u>PRESIDENT LYONS</u> called for a vote to approve a salary increase for the Commissioner of Finance. APPROVED by voice vote with 33 yes votes, three no votes, Reps. Perillo, DeLuca and Maihock and one abstention, Rep. Summerville.

<u>REP. HOGAN</u> said that the Committee voted unanimoulsy for the salary increase for the Commissioner of Public Works from the present \$70,000 to \$77,500. Moved. Seconded.

<u>PRESIDENT LYONS</u> called for a vote to approve a salary increase for the Commissioner of Public Works. APPROVED by voice vote with 33 yes votes, three no votes, Reps. Maihock, DeLuca and Perillo and one abstention, Rep. Summerville.

REP. HOGAN said that the Committee voted unanimously for the increase for the position of City and Town Clerk from \$50,000 to \$58,125. Moved. Seconded.

PRESIDENT LYONS called for a vote to approve a salary increase for the Town and City Clerk. APPROVED by 34 yes votes, two no votes, Reps. Perillo and Maihock and one abstention, Rep. Summerville.

REP. HOGAN said that the Registrar of Voters position at the present time is \$39,500; recommended to be increased to \$46,500. Rep. Hogan said that the salary is part-time/half-time salary prorated that the actual figure of \$46,500 is \$23,250. Rep. Hogan Moved for approval. Seconded.

REP. RUBINO questioned where it was written that the Registrars can't come in and work 35 hours and ask for the \$46,500. He said there is no contract, nothing written in the Charter and no ordinance. Rep. Rubino said that if the Board designates the salary to be \$46,500, if 35 hours are worked, and if combined with Charter which designates the position, perhaps, as full-time, there may be an argument that the Registrars work those hours and are entitled to the \$46,500.

PRESIDENT LYONS said that the matter was concerning two positions.

REP. RUBINO said that he was not clear on that either.

PRESIDENT LYONS said the salary is not being designated at \$46,500; that would be the total for two people or \$23,250 each.

REP. RUBINO said that his understanding was that the Registrars would be paid on an hourly basis equal to the amount that a full time worker would make at \$46,500; if that fact is combined with the Charter provision describing the position, there is a problem.

REP. BOCCUZZI said that about three years ago, the Registrars' positions were decided to be part-time or on an hourly rate and if the proposed amount is approved this evening, the rate cannot exceed \$23,250 for the entire year. Rep. Boccuzzi said that is no money in the budget to pay \$46,500 if they work 35 hours; an additional appropriation request would have to be made. He said that if he remembers correctly, that at that time, there was a possibility of making Deputy Registrars part-time; actually, the Deputy Registrars are present all day and are the nuts and bolts of the Registrars office. Rep. Boccuzzi said that the Registars do all the work to keep up with the rules of the state which are continually changing; they also put in many hours at election time and even though they work many more hours, they will still only receive the \$23,250 salary.

REP. HOGAN said that at this point, he can see some valid concerns relative to what Rep. Rubino stated. Rep. Hogan reminded the Board that if no action is taken this evening, no action can be taken until 1995.

REP. MARTIN said that he believed that the Board would be approving a \$46,500 a year salary for each position, in essence, a rate of pay for a 35-hour work week. He said that the Registrars are budgeted at 25 hours a week and they are paid for that. Rep. Martin said a legal question has been raised if \$46,500 is what they are to receive and should they be working full-time?

REP. RUBINO said that the assumption is that the Registrars would be working 20 hours but by voting on the item this evening, the Board is designating their salary to be \$46,500 were they to work a 35-hour week. Rep. Rubino said that there is a provision in the Charter stating that it is a full-time position and no matter what the funding is for the position to be voted on this evening, the Registars can show up for 35 hours and demand to be paid \$46,500; whether or not there is any work to do. Rep. Rubino said that no one has articulated to him a legal mechanism, a contract, an ordinance or anything saying that the Registrars cannot work 35 hours and demand the pay. He said in his legal opinion, that the Registrars can show up for 35 hours and be paid \$46,500; he said that they would prevail in court. Rep. Rubino said that his concerns were brought up at the Personnel Committee meeting yet there is nothing to clarify the item.

<u>REP. RUBINO</u> said that he does not know whether the item concerns one position or two positions; he said that he cannot vote on this item as he doesn't know what he would be voting for.

REP. PIA said that there are seasonal, part-time, and permanent part-time workers; he wondered what category the Registrars fall into. Rep. Pia said that a seasonal position is for 19-1/2 hour and anything over that, an employee receives all benefits. Rep. Pia said that the matter regarding the Registars was too complicated for him to vote on this evening; the matter was not clear.

REP. HOGAN said that the Registrars are on a part-time basis.

<u>REP. M. RINALDI</u> said that in the budget under Registrars of Voters, there is a permanent part-time account line funded at \$55,390 which is the salary for both Registrars.

REP. DOMONKOS said that the Registrars get health benefits but no pension.

<u>REP. RUBINO</u> said that regardless of what the Registrars are budgeted for, if you vote for the salary designations in this item, they have legal recourse if they chose to work a full work week.

REP. LAROBINA said that he would like to see the increase approved but you must listen carefully to what Rep. Rubino was saying. Rep. Larobina said that if a salary is established at a certain number without somewhere else establishing that it is a part-time position, what prevents the individuals from suing based in contract for the full salary?

A motion was made for a Recess. Seconded.

<u>PRESIDENT LYONS</u> called for a vote to approve the Recess. APPROVED by voice vote with no dissenting votes.

PRESIDENT LYONS called the meeting to order after the Recess. (Recess was from 9:00 to 9:25 p.m.)

REP. HOGAN yielded the Floor to Rep. Rubino.

REP. RUBINO Moved to amend the Registrar of Voters position by adding an "asterisk" after the \$46,500*; he read the motion. "*This amount is the total of both the Republican and Democratic elected Registrar positions. In approving this pay plan, this Board intends that the gross salary of each position shall not exceed \$23,250 per fiscal year for those permanent part-time positions." Seconded.

<u>REP. LaDESTRO</u> Moved to amend Rep. Rubino's motion. Seconded. Rep. LaDestro amended the motion by adding, "This pay plan does not take effect until December 1, 1994."

<u>PRESIDENT LYONS</u> called for a vote to approve the amendments. APPROVED by voice vote with 32 yes votes, four no votes, Reps. Perillo, Maihock, Pia and Sabia and one abstention, Rep. Summerville.

The amendment now reads, "*This amount is the total of both the Republican and Democratic elected Registar positions. In approving this pay plan, this Board intends that the gross salary of each position shall not exceed \$23,250 per fiscal year for those permanent part-time positions. This pay plan does not take effect until December 1, 1994."

PRESIDENT LYONS called for a vote to approve the pay plan for the Registrars of Voters as amended. APPROVED by voice vote with 32 yes votes, three no votes, Reps. Perillo, Pia and Maihock and two abstentions, Reps. Summerville and Laurie.

REP. PERILLO said that she voted "no" on all the salary increases at the request of the people in her District and the many people throughout the city that approached her. She said that with the lay-offs that people are getting and the possible big tax increase, the people asked, "How can the people justify voting for something like this?" Rep. Perillo stated that was her reason for voting against the increases.

REP. MAIHOCK said that she concurred with Rep. Perillo. She said that her reasons for voting "no" were the same as expressed by Rep. Perillo.

 SALARY RECOMMENDATIONS PER SECTION 5-10-3(b) OF CHARTER TO AMEND THE PAY PLAN FOR CLASSIFIED AND UNCLASSIFIED ADMINISTRATORS AS OUTLINED IN LETTER OF 7/22/93. Submitted by Sim Bernstein, Personnel Director, 7/22/93. Personnel Commission approved 7/21/93. Board of Finance approved 9/9/93. Held in Committee 9/7 and 10/4/93.

NO ACTION TAKEN: TO BE RESUBMITTED TO 23RD BOARD.

REP. HOGAN thanked his Committee for all their time and effort during the past two years and on behalf of the Committee to Rep. Joan Rinaldi, "We'll miss you, Joan."

PLANNING & ZONING COMMITTEE - W. Dennis White, Chairman

<u>REP. LaDESTRO</u> said that the Committee met on October 21, 1993. Present were Reps. John Boccuzzi, Scott Morris, Greg LaDestro, Gloria DePina and Nicholas Pavia; also, Rep. Robert DeLuca.

 FOR FINAL ADOPTION (PUBLICATION WAIVED) - PROPOSED ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF LOT 16A, ASSESSOR CARD S12, PROPERTY LOCATED ON DAVENPORT RIDGE ROAD BY PUBLIC AUCTION. Requested by Daniel M. McCabe, Corporation Counsel. Planning Board approved 5/4/93. Board of Finance approved 8/12/93. Held in Steering 8/11/93. Held in Committee 10/4/93.

REP. LaDESTRO said that the Committee voted for publication. Seconded.

<u>REP. ZELINSKY</u> said that with the coming of the end of this Board, if this proposed ordinance is published now, it will also have to be republished by the next Board. He said that this was a waste of taxpayers' money.

REP. MAIHOCK concurred with Rep. Zelinsky's remarks.

REP. DeLUCA Moved to waive publication of the proposed ordinance. Seconded.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMITTEE: (continued)

PRESIDENT LYONS called for a vote to waive publication of the proposed ordinance. APPROVED by voice vote with one abstention, Rep. Larobina.

REP. LaDESTRO Moved for final adoption of the proposed ordinance. Seconded.

<u>PRESIDENT LYONS</u> called for a vote to approve final adoption of the proposed ordinance. APPROVED by voice vote with 36 yes votes and one abstention, Rep. Larobina.

REP. BOCCUZZI stated that the Planning and Zoning Committee had all intentions to waive publication of the ordinance as they were aware that this would be the last meeting of the 22nd Board; Rep. LaDestro did not get a chance to carry out the wishes of the Committee.

REP. LaDESTRO said that Rep. Boccuzzi's statements were correct.

REPS. ZELINSKY AND DeLUCA apologized to Rep. LaDestro. It was not their intentions to overlook the Committee.

 SENSE-OF-THE-BOARD RESOLUTION CONCERNING WORKLOAD OF ZONING ENFORCEMENT OFFICER. Submitted by Rep. Robert DeLuca, R-14, 9/7/93. Report made and Held in Committee 10/4/93.

REP. LaDESTRO said that last month, a report was made on the overload of work of the Zoning Enforcement Officer. He said that the Committee voted to put the item on Consent. Rep. LaDestro said that the resolution is asking the Mayor to possibly realign a department to give some support staff to the Zoning Enforcement Officer or perhaps, another field officer to help handle some of the work. Rep. LaDestro Moved for approval. Seconded.

<u>PRESIDENT LYONS</u> called for a vote to approve a Sense-of-the-Board Resolution Concerning the Workload of the Zoning Enforcement Officer. APPROVED by voice vote with no dissenting votes.

<u>REP. LaDESTRO</u> thanked the Committee for accepting him as Vice Chairman in the absence of W. Dennis White who is ill. Rep. LaDestro said that his Committee was very cooperative and accepting.

PUBLIC WORKS & SEWER COMMITTEE - Bobby Owens, Chairman

REP. OWENS said that there was no meeting, therefore, he would like the item to be resubmitted for the next Board.

 FOR FINAL ADOPTION - PROPOSED ORDINANCE CONCERNING DEFERRALS OF SEWER ASSESSMENTS FOR ELDERLY AND DISABLED PROPERTY OWNERS. Submitted by Mayor Stanley J. Esposito, 5/25/93. Held in Committee 7/6, 8/2 and 10/4/93. Approved for publication 9/7/93.

NO ACTION TAKEN: TO BE RESUBMITTED.

REP. OWENS thanked his Committee and said that they worked very diligently with him on all the the issues before the Committee.

<u>HEALTH & PROTECTION COMMITTEE</u> - Audrey Maihock & Ralph Loglisci, Co-Chairpersons No report.

<u>REP. MAIHOCK</u> said that she and Rep. Loglisci thank all the Committee members, Joseph Gergle, Ellen Mellis, Marggie Laurie, Patrick Mullins and Bobby Owens, for their wonderful participation. Rep. Maihock said that much was accomplished in this term.

PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE - Thomas Pia & Robert DeLuca, Co-Chairmen No report.

REP. DeLUCA said that the Committee has always operated for the best interest of the city. He said that the Committee was concerned about the fees because they felt that the user should pay for the services thus putting the city in a better financial position. Rep. DeLuca said that the Committee has done an excellent job inspite of some controversial items that they had to deal with. He said that he and Co-Chair Pia expressed their sincerest thanks to all Committee members.

EDUCATION, WELFARE & GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE - John R. Zelinsky, Jr., Chairman No report.

REP. ZELINSKY thanked the members of his Committee for their time and effort. Also, he said that it was an honor and pleasure to serve under President Lyons.

HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE - Elaine Mitchell, Chairwoman No report.

REP. MITCHELL thanked her Committee for all the work done by them over the past two years. She appreciated all their efforts.

URBAN RENEWAL COMMITTEE - Michael Larobina & Mary Lou Rinaldi, Co-Chairpersons

REP. LAROBINA said that the Committee met on Thursday, October 21, 1993 at 7:00 p.m. Present were Committee members Rep. Maria Nakian, John Boccuzzi, Michael Larobina, Thomas Pia and David Martin; also present was Elizabeth Saunders, Chairperson on the Urban Redevelopment Commission and City Corporation Counsel Daniel McCabe.

Rep. Larobina said that public hearings were held. The Committee voted 5-0-0 to place the items on Consent.

 FOR FINAL ADOPTION - PROPOSED RESOLUTION CONCERNING APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT FOR THE SALE OF LAND IN THE SOUTHEAST QUADRANT (EXTENDED) URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT FOR PRIVATE REDEVELOPMENT TO TCR NEW CANAAN II, INC. Submitted by Michael D. Larobina and Mary Lou Rinaldi, Co-Chairperson, Urban Renewal Committee, 8/4/93. Held in Committee 9/7/93. Approved for publication 10/4/93.

URBAN RENEWAL COMMITTEE: (continued)

2. FOR FINAL ADOPTION - PROPOSED RESOLUTION CONCERNING APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT FOR THE SALE OF LAND IN THE SOUTHEAST QUADRANT (EXTENDED) URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT FOR PRIVATE REDEVELOPMENT TO TOMBROCK CORPORATION. Submitted by Michael D. Larobina and Mary Lou Rinaldi, Co-Chairpersons, Urban Renewal Committee, 8/4/93. Held in Committee 9/7/93. Approved for publication 10/4/93.

APPROVED ON CONSENT AGENDA WITH REP. GERGLE ABSTAINING.

REP. LAROBINA Moved the Consent Agenda. Seconded.

<u>PRESIDENT LYONS</u> called for a vote to approve the Consent Agenda. APPROVED by voice vote with Reps. Gergle and Leydon abstaining on item one and Rep. Gergle abstaining on item two.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE - Donald Sherer, Chairman - No report.

<u>REP. SHERER</u> thanked his Committee for their diligence in attending all the meetings and said that it was a pleasure working with all the members.

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE - Scott A. Morris, Chairman

REP. MORRIS said that the Committee met on Thursday, October 28, 1993 at 7:00 p.m. Committee members present were Reps. Audrey Maihock, Scott Morris, Joseph Gergle, Jeffrey Curtis and Francisco Gaztambide; excused were Reps. William Belcher and W. Dennis White. Also, attending were Reps. Maria Nakian and John Boccuzzi; Carmine Longo, Parking Supervisor, Department of Traffic and Parking; Mani Poola, City Traffic Engineer; Coleen Harkey, President of the Springdale Neighborhood Association; and Marilyn Trefry, Vice President of the Springdale Neighborhood Association.

 MATTER OF GENERAL CONDITIONS AND MAINTENANCE AT THE PARKING LOTS OF THE SPRINGDALE AND GLENBROOK RAILROAD STATIONS DURING CONSTRUCTION. Submitted by Reps. Maria C. Nakian, D-20 and Scott A. Morris, D-17, 10/12/93.

REP. MORRIS said that a complete Committee report was sent to all members. A copy of the report is attached to these Minutes.

Rep. Morris thanked all his Committee members for their diligence over the past two years and for all their time and effort.

SPECIAL COMMITTEES

HOUSE COMMITTEE - Gerald Rybnick, Chairman - No report.

COLISEUM AUTHORITY LIAISON COMMITTEE - Francisco Gaztambide, Chairman No report.

LABOR RELATIONS COMMITTEE - John J. Boccuzzi & Nicholas Pavia, Co-Chairmen No report.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE - Joan Rinaldi, Chairwoman

REP. J. RINALDI said that the Committee met on Wednesday, October 20, 1993 with the Economic Commission and the Director of Economic Development.

1. DISCUSSION ON RELATIONSHIP AND INTERACTION BETWEEN THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION AND THE CITY'S OFFICE OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT. Requested by Joan Rinaldi, Chairwoman, Economic Development Committee, 8/4/93. Reports made and Held in Committee 9/7 and 10/4/93.

REP. J. RINALDI said that a report was submitted to all Board members. The report is attached to these Minutes.

Rep. J. Rinaldi thanked the members of her Committee. She said the Committee had a slow start but once the Director and the Commissioners were named, joint meetings were held. She thanked them for their interest in attending the educational sessions and wished that the same be continued in the future.

ETHICS REVIEW COMMITTEE - James Rubino & Maria Nakian, Co-Chairpersons No report.

AUDIT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE - Robert DeLuca & John J. Boccuzzi, Co-Chairmen No report.

PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE - John J. Boccuzzi & James Rubino, Co-Chairmen REP. RUBINO said that the Committee met October 28, 1993.

1. ISSUES CONCERNING PUBLIC SAFETY IN THE CITY. Submitted by James Rubino and John J. Boccuzzi, Co-Chairmen, Public Safety Committee, 8/10/93. Reports made and Held in Committee 9/7 and 10/4/93.

REP. RUBINO said that a lengthy report has been submitted and will be distributed to all members. A copy of this report is attached to these Minutes.

RESOLUTIONS

1. SENSE-OF-THE-BOARD RESOLUTION HONORING RICHARD L. LYONS, PRESIDENT OF THE 22ND BOARD OF REPRESENTATIVES FOR HIS MANY YEARS OF SERVICE TO THE CITY OF STAMFORD. Submitted by 22nd Board of Representatives, 11/3/93.

Approved unanimously. See page two for details.

MINUTES

- 1. SEPTEMBER 7, 1993 REGULAR BOARD MEETING APPROVED.
- 2. OCTOBER 4, 1993 REGULAR BOARD MEETING APPROVED.

COMMUNICATIONS - NONE.

OLD BUSINESS - NONE.

NEW BUSINESS - NONE.

REP. BOCCUZZI said that listening to the remarks and comments made this evening between the members and the President, he had a good feeling that so many people can sit in one room for two years and after it all ends, the members can joke and kid with each other. He said that being a member of the Board gives you a great feeling. He thanked his side of the aisle for the cooperation given him and he thanked Rep. Rubino and his side for all their cooperation.

REP. SUMMERVILLE said she extends a special thanks to Rep. Ellen Bromley. She said that she will miss Ellen's wonderful smile and Ellen has been a friend and has done much to make her grow in her position.

Rep. Summerville also expressed her thanks to Rep. Rubino and hoped that whoever will be sitting in his seat will be as nice and as kind as he has been even though at times, Jim would say, "You shouldn't do this or you shouldn't do that." Rep. Summerville said that the Republican Caucus will miss Rep. Rubino. Rep. Summerville wished Rep. Rubino "good luck" on the Board of Finance and said that in the next two years, there probably will be disagreements.

Rep. Summerville said that she will also miss Rep. Joan Rinaldi. She said that she got to know Joan late in the Board's term. Rep. Summerville said that to know Joan, is to love her; Joan is a true person and will give you her advice even if she disagrees with you. Rep. Summerville said that she likes that quality in a person.

Rep. Summerville said that she will miss Dr. Weinstein. She said that she knows that the Doctor will be coming back.

Rep. Summerville said that she got to know Rep. Gergle and said that he will do well in his future endeavors. She said that she hoped that the llth District will remember all the wonderful things he did for the district; Joe will be missed.

Rep. Summerville said that if she omitted anyone, she apoligizes. She said that as stated by Rep. Boccuzzi, you can disagree to agree or agree to disagree, but in the end, we all agree. She said if there is anything that she can help anyone with, don't hesitate to call her.

ADJOURNMENT - Upon a motion duly made and Seconded and Approved by voice vote, the meeting was adjourned at 9:45 p.m.

Anne A. Kachaluba, Administrative Assistant and Recording Secretary 22nd Board of Representatives

APPROVED:

Richard L. Lyons, President 22nd Board of Representatives

RLL:ak Enclosures

STAMVOTE - ATTENDANCE

11-03-1993

NO		NAME	NO		NAME	
1	N/P	GAZTAMBIDE, FRANCISCO	21	PRS	DE PINA, GLORIA	
2	PRS	NAKIAN, MARIA	22	PRS	DOMONKOS, CARMEN	
3	PRS	PIA, THOMAS	23	PRS	HOUSEY, ANGELA	
4	PRS	OWENS, BOBBY	24	PRS	LAURIE, MARGGIE	
5	PRS	LOGLISCI, RALPH	25	PRS	PERILLO, MILDRED	
6	PRS	WEINSTEIN, PAUL	26	PRS	PAVIA, NICHOLAS	
7	PRS	LADESTRO, GREGORY	27	PRS	MITCHELL, ELAINE	
8	PRS	RYBNICK, GERALD	28	N/P	SHERER, DONALD	
9	PRS	CURTIS, JEFFREY	29	PRS	MORRIS, SCOTT	
10	PRS	SABIA, RONALD	30	PRS	HOGAN, JOHN J.	
11	PRS	MAIHOCK, AUDREY			ZELINSKY, JOHN	
.12	PRS	JOHNSON, FRED			BROMLEY, ELLEN	
		DE LUCA, ROBERT			LAROBINA, MICHAEL	
		GERGLE, JOSEPH			RINALDI, JOAN	
		STORK, PHILIP			LEYDON, JOHN F.	
		BELCHER, WILLIAM	36	N/P	MULLINS, PATRICK	
		RUBINO, JAMES			RINALDI, MARY LOU	
		MELLIS, ELLEN			MARTIN, DAVID	
		WHITE, W. DENNIS			BOCCUZZI, JOHN	
20	PRS	SUMMERVILLE, ANNIE	40	PRS	LYONS, RICHARD	
		e ezi				
		NOT PRESENT 5			PRESENT, 35	

STAMVOTE - VOTE PROCESSING

11-03-1993

TEST VOTE YES

NO		NAME		NO		NAME	
		GAZTAMBIDE, FRANCISCO					
7	N/F	WANTAN MADTA		22	VEC	DOMONKOS, CARMEN	
2	ILS	NAKIAN, MARIA PIA, THOMAS OWENS, BOBBY					
3	YES	PIA, THOMAS				HOUSEY, ANGELA	
4	YES	OWENS, BOBBY				LAURIE, MARGGIE	
5	YES	LOGLISCI, RALPH				PERILLO, MILDRED	
6	YES	WEINSTEIN, PAUL		26	YES	PAVIA, NICHOLAS	
7	YES	LADESTRO, GREGORY		27	YES	MITCHELL, ELAINE	
		RYBNICK, GERALD		28	N/P	SHERER, DONALD	
		CURTIS, JEFFREY		29	YES	MORRIS, SCOTT	
		SABIA, RONALD		30	YES	HOGAN, JOHN J.	
		MAIHOCK, AUDREY				ZELINSKY, JOHN	
12	VES	JOHNSON, FRED				BROMLEY, ELLEN	
		DE LUCA, ROBERT				LAROBINA, MICHAEL	
						RINALDI, JOAN	
						LEYDON, JOHN F.	
12	ILS			35		MULLINS, PATRICK	
16	YES	BELCHER, WILLIAM		20			
17	YES	RUBINO, JAMES		37		RINALDI, MARY LOU	
TR	YES	MELLINS - ELLIPSN		20	YES	MARTIN, DAVID	
19	N/P	WHITE, W. DENNIS		39	YES	BOCCUZZI, JOHN	
		SUMMERVILLE, ANNIE		40	YES	LYONS, RICHARD	
		P 5 N/V 0	YES	35		BOCCUZZI, JOHN LYONS, RICHARD NO 0 ABS	0